



Zoning Resolution

THE CITY OF NEW YORK

Eric Adams, Mayor

CITY PLANNING COMMISSION

Daniel R. Garodnick, Chair

15-10 - REGULATIONS GOVERNING RESIDENTIAL CONVERSIONS WITHIN EXISTING BUILDINGS IN RESIDENCE AND COMMERCIAL DISTRICTS

File generated by <https://zr.planning.nyc.gov> on 9/10/2025

15-10 - REGULATIONS GOVERNING RESIDENTIAL CONVERSIONS WITHIN EXISTING BUILDINGS IN RESIDENCE AND COMMERCIAL DISTRICTS

LAST AMENDED
12/5/2024

15-11 - Bulk Regulations

LAST AMENDED
12/5/2024

The ~~#conversion#~~ of non-~~#residential#~~ ~~#floor area#~~ to ~~#residences#~~ or ~~#community facilities#~~ with sleeping accommodations, including the ~~#conversion#~~ of ~~#floor area#~~ on a ~~#zoning lot#~~ that exceeds the maximum ~~#floor area#~~ permitted by the applicable district regulations, shall be permitted in accordance with the provisions of this Section.

For the ~~#conversion#~~ of non-~~#residential#~~ ~~#floor area#~~ to ~~#residences#~~ or ~~#community facilities#~~ with sleeping accommodations, the applicable density requirements shall be modified in accordance with the provisions of Section [15-111](#) (Number of permitted dwelling units), and the regulations governing ~~#open space ratio#~~, ~~#yards#~~, the minimum distance between two or more ~~#buildings#~~ on a single ~~#zoning lot#~~ and the minimum distance between windows and walls or ~~#lot lines#~~ are hereby superseded and replaced by the requirements of Sections [15-112](#) (Light and air provisions) and [15-12](#) (Required Recreation Space).

15-111 - Number of permitted dwelling units

LAST AMENDED
12/5/2024

The maximum number of ~~#dwelling units#~~ permitted shall be determined in accordance with the applicable district regulations pursuant to Section [23-50](#) (DENSITY REGULATIONS), inclusive. Any ~~#floor area#~~ in excess of the district regulations shall be included in the amount of ~~#floor area#~~ to be divided by the ~~#dwelling unit#~~ factor, where applicable.

For the ~~#conversion#~~ of non-~~#residential#~~ ~~#floor area#~~ to ~~#residences#~~, pursuant to Section [74-71](#) (Landmark Preservation), in C7, C8 and ~~#Manufacturing Districts#~~, the maximum number of ~~#dwelling units#~~ shall be determined by applying the density regulations set forth in Section [23-50](#) in accordance with the applicable geography.

In addition, the following provisions shall apply:

~~#Dwelling units#~~ may be distributed anywhere within a ~~#building#~~ provided that any portion of a ~~#dwelling unit#~~ located in a ~~#cellar#~~ shall also comply with the provisions of Section [15-112](#) (Light and air provisions).

Mezzanines constructed pursuant to Chapter 26 of the Administrative Code shall be allowed within individual ~~#dwelling units#~~ provided that the gross area of such mezzanine does not exceed 33 1/3 percent of the ~~#floor area#~~ contained within such ~~#dwelling unit#~~. Such mezzanines are permitted only in ~~#buildings#~~ with an existing ~~#floor area ratio#~~ of 12 or less, and only between floors, or between a floor and a roof, existing on January 22, 1998, that are to remain. Such mezzanines shall not be included as ~~#floor area#~~ for the purpose of calculating the minimum required size of a ~~#dwelling unit#~~ or for calculating ~~#floor area#~~ devoted to ~~#dwelling units#~~.

The density provisions of this Section may be replaced by the regulations of Section [15-024](#) (Special bulk regulations for certain pre-existing dwelling units and joint living-work quarters for artists) for ~~#dwelling units#~~ that are registered Interim Multiple Dwellings or are covered by the New York City Loft Board pursuant to Article 7C of the New York State Multiple Dwelling

Law or that the Loft Board determines were occupied for #residential use# on September 1, 1980.

15-112 - Light and air provisions

LAST AMENDED

2/2/2011

- (a) Spaces other than #rooms#:
- (1) Mezzanines shall be lit and ventilated in accordance with the provisions of Section [27-732](#) (Natural light requirements) and Article 6 (Standard of Natural Ventilation) of the New York City Building Code.
 - (2) #Cellar# space is not permitted in #dwelling units# with three and one-half #rooms# or fewer, unless such #dwelling units# contain at least 1,200 square feet of interior #floor area#.
 - (3) Spaces, other than "living rooms," kitchens, bathrooms or mezzanines, with a minimum width of five feet in the narrowest dimension measured perpendicular to a wall enclosing such space, are not permitted in #dwelling units# with two #rooms# or fewer, unless such #dwelling units# contain at least 1,200 square feet of interior #floor area#.
- (b) Every #dwelling unit# shall meet the light and air requirements of Section 277 of the Multiple Dwelling Law.
- (c) Width to depth ratio

Where there is more than one #dwelling unit# per #story#, the average width of each #dwelling unit# shall be at least one fourth of the depth. Depth is the farthest point within the #dwelling unit# from the exterior #building# wall containing windows used to meet the requirements of paragraph (b) of this Section, measured perpendicular to such #building# wall. Width is the distance between exterior #dwelling unit# walls measured perpendicular to the depth.

15-12 - Required Recreation Space



LAST AMENDED

12/5/2024

All #conversions# in #buildings# that are #multiple dwelling residences# which result in nine or more new #dwelling units# after December 5, 2024, shall provide recreation space in accordance with the provisions of Section [23-63](#) (Required Recreation Space in Multiple Dwelling Residences). However, such provisions shall be modified as follows:

- (a) where recreation space is provided outdoors, the minimum amount of recreation space required pursuant to Section [23-63](#) may be reduced to an equivalent of two percent of the #residential# #floor area# of the #building#; and
- (b) the provisions of paragraph (d) of such Section need not apply.

15-13 - Special Home Occupation Provision

LAST AMENDED

6/6/2024

In C6 Districts, and in C5 Districts in the Borough of Manhattan in the area south of Murray Street, its easterly prolongation, and the Brooklyn Bridge, the #home occupation# provisions of Section [12-10](#) shall apply, except that a #home occupations# may occupy more than 1,000 square feet of #floor area# and up to three persons not residing in the #dwelling unit# or #rooming unit# may be employed.